
 

1 
 

 

State Interagency Coordinating Council (ICC) 
on Early Intervention 

 
 

 
 

“Promoting Excellence In Early Start” 
 

July 15, 2021 
9:00 a.m.—1:00 p.m. 

July 16, 2021 
9:00 a.m.—1:00 p.m. 

 
 

 
  
 
 
  



 

2 
 

 
Interagency Coordinating Council 

July 15-16, 2021 

Table of Contents 
 
 

 
Mission Statement………………………………………………………………………..  Page 3 
 
Contact List…………………………………………………………….………………….  Page 4 
 
2021 Public Meetings Notice....………………….……………………………………..  Page 8 
 
Meeting Agenda  

• July 15, 2021.….............................................................................................  Page 13 

• July 16, 2021……………………………………………………………………....  Page 14 

Previous Meeting Minutes  

• April 14, 2021...………….………..………………………….............................  Page 16 

• April 15, 2021……………………………………………………………………...  Page 20 

 
  

Additional materials can be found at: 
 

Interagency Coordinating Council Information 
 

Public Notice 
Member Rosters 

Website List 
Master Calendar 

Meeting Schedule 
Acronyms 
Handouts 

Travel 

 

 
The Interagency Coordinating Council is an open public meeting that may be recorded, provided it 
does not cause a disruption to the proceedings. 

  

https://www.dds.ca.gov/services/early-start/state-icc-on-early-intervention-overview/


 

3 
 

Interagency Coordinating Council 
On Early Intervention (ICC) 

 
 

ICC Mission Statement 
 

The mission of the ICC is to promote and enhance a coordinated family service system for infants 
and toddlers, ages birth to three years, who have, or are at risk for having, a disability, and their 
families, utilizing and encouraging a family-centered approach, family-professional partnerships, and 
interagency collaboration. 
 
 

The History of the ICC 
 

California has a long history of providing early intervention services to infants and toddlers, ages birth 
to three years, and their families.  In the 1960s and 1970s, special education services for infants and 
toddlers were provided in public schools and funded through various local, state and federal sources.  
With the advent of the Lanterman Developmental Disabilities Services Act (Lanterman Act) in 1969, 
California demonstrated its support of young children with prevention and early intervention services 
for infants with developmental disabilities through the regional center system.  This was a huge effort 
and viewed as a major investment in California’s children. 
 

In 1988, the first ICC convened to provide advice and assistance to the Department of Developmental 
Services (DDS) regarding implementation of a coordinated early intervention system in California.  In 
1993, after five years of state and local planning activities in preparation for full implementation of 
Part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), the Governor signed the California 
Early Intervention Services Act (CEISA: Title 14, Government Code section 95000 et seq.)  CEISA 
established state authority to enhance California’s early intervention service system to meet the new 
federal requirements under Part C.  CEISA assigned DDS as lead agency in collaboration with 
California Department of Education (CDE).  Other collaborative partners involved in the ICC include 
Department of Social Services (DSS), Department of Managed Health Care (DMHC), and First 5 
California. 
 

Although the early intervention landscape has changed over the years in California, the ICC has 
continued to follow, advise, and assist DDS on the state of the early intervention community.   
The changes have included amendments to CEISA that brought the addition of provision of family 
support services by Early Start Family Resource Centers (FRC).  FRCs provide services such as 
parent-to-parent support, information dissemination and referral, public awareness, family-
professional collaboration activities, and transition for families.  CEISA also clarified state coordination 
and collaboration with families and communities, service coordinator competencies and caseload 
size, evaluation and assessment, parent rights, referral to local FRCs and monitoring efforts.  Lastly, 
CEISA was amended to clarify that the Part C program is based on existing systems and how 
regional centers must comply with the Lanterman Act.  This includes regulations related to 
vendorization and rate setting as long as the application of state law does not conflict with early 
intervention statutes. 

  



 

4 
 

Interagency Coordinating Council 
 Appointed Members 

 

Name Composition  Email Address  Phone 

Norayma Cabot Provider/Plaza de la 
Raza Child 
Development Svcs 
Inc. 

ncabot@pdlr.org (562) 483-9944 
 

Matt Chesnut Provider/Parent 
Infant Programs 

mattc@parentinfantprograms.com (530) 247-1375 

Michelle Dove Agency Rep/Head 
Start 

mdove@kcao.org  (559) 362-5629 

Sharon DeRego 
(For Nancy 
Bargmann) 

Agency Rep/DDS 
Early Intervention 
Services 

sharon.derego@dds.ca.gov 
nancy.bargmann@dds.ca.gov 

(916) 654-3681 
(916) 654-1897 

Susan Ducore Indian Health 
Service 

susan.ducore@ihs.gov (916) 930-3981 

Douglas Erber* Parent/Autism 
Partnership 
Foundation 

dougerber@hotmail.com (310) 965-9050 

Sally 
Grevemberg 

Provider sallyrenee@me.com (209) 465-2311 

Marie Kanne 
Poulsen 

Personnel/Preparati
on Chair 

mpoulsen@chla.usc.edu (323) 361-3819 

Alma Martinez* Parent/Community 
Medical Centers 

AMartinez9@communitymedical.org (559) 724-4386 

Richard Olney  Agency Rep/CDPH 
Medi-Cal 

richard.olney@cdph.ca.gov (510) 231-7408 

Shanice Orum Agency Rep/DSS Shanice.Orum@DSS.ca.gov 
 

(916) 215-2973 

Sarah Neville-
Morgan 
(For Tony 
Thurmond) 

Agency Rep/CDE 
Preschool Services 

SNevilleMorgan@cde.ca.gov 
 

(916) 319-0900 

Suzanne 
Sherinian  
(For Michelle 
Rouillard) 

Agency Rep/DMHC 
Health Care  

suzanne.sherinian@dmhc.ca.gov 
  

(916) 255-2391 
 

Stephanie 
Welch 

Agency Rep/CHHS Stephanie.Welch@chhs.ca.gov 
 

(916) 538-7139 

Leanne 
Wheeler 

Agency Rep/CDE 
Homeless Children 

lwheeler@cde.ca.gov (916) 319-0383 

Lisa Witchey Agency Rep/DSS Lisa.Witchey@dss.ca.gov 
 

(916) 651-6020 

 

  

mailto:mattc@parentinfantprograms.com
mailto:mdove@kcao.org
mailto:sharon.derego@dds.ca.gov
mailto:nancy.bargmann@dds.ca.gov
mailto:susan.ducore@ihs.gov
mailto:dougerber@hotmail.com
mailto:sallyrenee@me.com
mailto:mpoulsen@chla.usc.edu
mailto:richard.olney@cdph.ca.gov
mailto:Shanice.Orum@DSS.ca.gov
mailto:SNevilleMorgan@cde.ca.gov
mailto:mary.watanabe@dmhc.ca.gov,
mailto:mary.watanabe@dmhc.ca.gov,
mailto:Stephanie.Welch@chhs.ca.gov
mailto:lwheeler@cde.ca.gov
mailto:Lisa.Witchey@dss.ca.gov


 

5 
 

Interagency Coordinating Council  
Community Representatives 

Name Representation Email Address Phone 

Brigitte Ammons Disability 
Rights/Advocacy 

Brigitte.ammons@ 
disabilityrightsca.org 

(213) 427-8747 

Teresa Anderson The Arc and United 
Cerebral Palsy California 
Collaboration 

teresa@thearcca.org (916) 552-6619 

Tony Anderson Executive Director/Valley 
Mountain RC 

tanderson@vmrc.net (209) 955-3241 

Kathy Angkustsiri  UCD MIND Institute  kangkustsiri@ucdavis.edu (916) 703 0235 

Brenda Baldeon Provider/West Coast 
Speech & Swallow 
Rehab Services 

brenb7@earthlink.net  (626) 715-2361 

Maurine Ballard-
Rosa 

CSUS Special Ed Faculty  maurinebr@csus.edu (916) 708-5285 

Yvette O. Baptiste* Parent/Eastern LA FRC ybaptiste@elafrc.net (626) 300-9171 

Jazmine Blackman Provider/Carousel 
Developmental Service 

Jazmine.blackman@ 
caroseldev.com 

(909) 496-2022 

Florence Bracy* Parent/Autism Family 
Advocate 

bracyflorence2013@gmail.com  (323) 574-0862 

Elena Bramble* Rowell Family 
Empowerment  
of Northern CA Inc. 

elenab@rfenc.org (530) 209-3621 

Shan Chan Kinder Speech and 
Language 

shan@kinderspeechlanguage.com (818) 280-9757 

Fran Chasen IDA Public Policy 
Liaison+- 

fran.chasen@gmail.com (310) 452-1142 

Pam Chueh Executive Director 
WarmLine Family 
Resource Center 

Pam@warmlinefrc.org  (916) 455-9500 

Rosalyn Daggs ASAP Home Health Rosalyn.d@asaphomehealth.com (661) 678-3366 

Wanda Davis First 5 wdavis@firstfivecc.org  (925) 771-7428 

Sheri Farinha NorCal Services for Deaf 
& Hard of Hearing 

sfarinha@norcalcenter.org 

 

(916) 626-4928 

Felica Ford Leap of Faith Family to 
Family Support 

fefeford@gmail.com (310) 420-9119 

Karen Moran 
Finello 

WestEd kfinell@wested.org  (626) 574-6904  

Edyth Gallardo Early Start Program 
Manager/Inland RC 

egallardo@inlandrc.org  (909) 890-3000 

Rachel Hagans Central Valley RC rhagans@cvrc.org (559) 738-2264 

Amy Hansen Easter Seals Superior 
California 

amyh2@myeasterseals.org  (916) 679-3142 

Samantha 
Hebermehl* 

Parent Samantha.heb@gmail.com (702) 241-2352 

mailto:brigitte.ammons@disabilityrightsca.org
mailto:brigitte.ammons@disabilityrightsca.org
mailto:tanderson@vmrc.net
mailto:kangkustsiri@ucdavis.edu
mailto:brenb7@earthlink.net
mailto:maurinebr@csus.edu
mailto:ybaptiste@elafrc.net
mailto:Jazmine.blackman@caroseldev.com
mailto:Jazmine.blackman@caroseldev.com
mailto:bracyflorence2013@gmail.com
mailto:fran.chasen@gmail.com
mailto:Pam@warmlinefrc.org
mailto:Rosalyn.d@asaphomehealth.com
mailto:wdavis@firstfivecc.org
mailto:sfarinha@norcalcenter.org
mailto:fefeford@gmail.com
mailto:kfinell@wested.org
mailto:egallardo@inlandrc.org
mailto:rhagans@cvrc.org
mailto:amyh2@myeasterseals.org


 

6 
 

  

Katie Hornberger Disability Rights 
California 

Katie@DisabilityRightsCA.org (916) 504-5942 

Leah Howley Easter Seals Superior 
California 

leahh@myeasterseals.org   916-679-3125 

Lucero Irizarry CAEYC Board Member ecementor@gmail.com  (951) 323-3670 

Laurie Jordan* Parent/Tri-Counties RC ljordan@tri-counties.org (805) 288-2544 

Linda Landry* Parent/FRCNCA lindajoyla@aol.com (323) 255-0354 

Jordan Lindsey The Arc of California jordan@thearcca.org  (916) 552-6619  
(916) 905-2153 

Heather Little  First 5 Association heather@first5association.org  (510) 227-6967 

Gayatri Mahajan NBRC/Medical Director, 
Sutter Sacramento HRIF 

gm050197@gmail.com  (707) 256-1100 

Diana Maffei* Parent/Warmline FRC  diana@warmlinefrc.org (530) 564-8645 

Robin Millar Early Intervention 
Provider 

millarrp@ah.org (805) 955-8120 

Patricia Moore* Parent/Alpha FRC pjmoore@alphasb.org   (805) 683-2145 

Wendy Morrison Ascend Rehab Services, 
Inc 

wendy.morrison@gmail.com (510) 757-4004 

Christina Nigrelli Zero to Three cnigrelli@zerotothree.org  (213) 395-3901 

Michelle Oliver Early Start Consultant growandlearn123@yahoo.com (408) 506-5173 

Marty Omoto California Disability 
Community Action 

martyomoto@att.net (916) 757-9549 

Julie Rems-Smario CDE jremssmario@cde.ca.gov (916) 262-7283 

Robert Rochin FRCNCA Rrochin@frcnca.com (415) 282-7494 
x194 

Sheri Rosen Sunny Days of California srosen@sunnydays.com (858) 432-4749 

Maria Ruiz-
Merroth 

SOS Paralegal LLC maria@sosparalegal.com (949) 326-6612 

Nancy Sager Retired CDE ngsager@gmail.com  (530) 300-6979 

Patricia Salcedo* Parent/COE psalcedo@napacoe.org (707) 477-4570 

Debbie Sarmento* Parent/FRCNCA debrasarmento@comcast.net (916) 962-0832 

Tara Sisemore-
Hester 

Valley Mountain RC tsisemore@vmrc.net (209) 674-6509 

Scott Turner East San Gabriel SELPA sturner@c-vusd.org (626) 966-1679 

Pablo Velez Amigo Baby pvelez@amigobaby.com (805) 901-1237 

Diane Williams Alta California Regional 
Center 

dwilliams@altaregional.org  (916) 978-6417 

*Parent 

mailto:leahh@myeasterseals.org
mailto:ecementor@gmail.com
mailto:ljordan@tri-counties.org
mailto:lindajoyla@aol.com
mailto:jordan@thearcca.org
mailto:heather@first5association.org
mailto:gm050197@gmail.com
mailto:diana@warmlinefrc.org
mailto:millarrp@ah.org
mailto:pjmoore@alphasb.org
mailto:wendy.morrison@gmail.com
mailto:cnigrelli@zerotothree.org
mailto:growandlearn123@yahoo.com
mailto:jremssmario@cde.ca.gov
mailto:srosen@sunnydays.com
mailto:maria@sosparalegal.com
mailto:ngsager@gmail.com
mailto:psalcedo@napacoe.org
mailto:debrasarmento@comcast.net
mailto:tsisemore@vmrc.net
mailto:dwilliams@altaregional.org


 

7 
 

 
Interagency Coordinating Council 

Support Staff 

 
  

Name Agency Email Address Phone 

Maricris Acon DDS maricris.acon@dds.ca.gov (916) 654-2250 

January Crane DDS January.Crane@dds.ca.gov (916) 639-4722 

Sharon DeRego DDS sharon.derego@dds.ca.gov (916) 654-3681 

Emily Woolford DDS emily.woolford@dds.ca.gov (916) 654-2133 

Jessica Dailey-Keithline DDS jessica.dailey@dds.ca.gov (916) 654-2767 

Shay Willis DDS shay.willis@dds.ca.gov (916) 654-1590 

Townley Saye DDS townley.saye@dds.ca.gov (916) 654-3111 

Cathy Schulze DDS catherine.schulze@dds.ca.gov (916) 657-2692 

Virginia Reynolds  WestEd vreynol@wested.org (916) 654-4016 

mailto:maricris.acon@dds.ca.gov
mailto:January.Crane@dds.ca.gov
mailto:sharon.derego@dds.ca.gov
mailto:emily.woolford@dds.ca.gov
mailto:shay.willis@dds.ca.gov
mailto:vreynol@wested.org


 

8 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA—HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY                                                                      GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 

 

Interagency Coordinating Council on Early Intervention 
1215 O Street, MS 7-40, Sacramento, CA  95814 

(916) 654-1590 · FAX (916) 654-3255 · TTY (916) 654-2054 
 

2021 Interagency Coordinating Council Meeting Dates 
 

The following is information regarding the 2021 Interagency Coordinating Council on Early  
Intervention (ICC) Meetings.  At this time meetings are being held via Zoom.  The instructions 
and links to join the meeting are included in the meeting packet.  Remote connection 
information available upon request.  
 
Individuals who require accommodations in order to attend the meeting (i.e., assistive listening 
devices, interpreting services, materials in alternative format) should notify Melanie Manus at 
(916) 654-2773 or EarlyStart@dds.ca.gov ten days in advance of the meeting.  The meeting 
location is accessible to individuals with disabilities.  Visit our website to view previous ICC 
meeting minutes and for additional information about California Early Start. 
 

2021 Quarterly Meeting Dates 
 

January 
Thursday-14th 

Friday-15th 

April 
Thursday-15th 

Friday-16th 

July 
Thursday-15th 

Friday-16th 
 

October 
Thursday-14th 

Friday-15th 

 
PROPOSED AGENDA (EXAMPLE) 

 
DATE:  Thursdays 
TIME: 9:00 A.M.—1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 
Day One Meeting 
 
The meeting will include: 

• Review of previous Meeting Minutes 

• Review of Agenda 

• Review of previous meetings’ tasks 

• Announcements 

• State Systemic Improvement Plan (SSIP) updates  

• Improving State Systems and Communication & 
Outreach Committees 

 
DATE:  Fridays 
TIME: 9:00 A.M.—1:00 P.M. 
 
  
 

 
Day Two Meeting 
 
The meeting will include: 

• Review of Agenda 

• Committee reports 

• Action items (as applicable) 

• Reports from the State Department 
Representatives 

• Public and parent input  
       15 minutes reserved  

• Early Intervention presentation 

mailto:EarlyStart@dds.ca.gov
https://www.dds.ca.gov/services/early-start/state-icc-on-early-intervention-overview/icc-meeting-minutes/
https://www.dds.ca.gov/services/early-start/state-icc-on-early-intervention-overview/icc-meeting-minutes/
https://www.dds.ca.gov/services/early-start/
https://www.dds.ca.gov/services/early-start/


 

9 
 

 

Instructions for joining remotely for the ICC Meeting 
 

The ICC Meeting will be offered in a webinar format.  You are invited to attend a Zoom 

meeting.  Participants need to call into the teleconference line AND login with a computer to 

view any online materials.  

To Connect with Audio: 
 
Dial Toll-Free Number (in USA).   
877 369 0926 US Toll-free 
877 853 5247 US Toll-free 
 
Day One  
Meeting ID: 923 0349 7250 
 
Day Two 

           Meeting ID: 997 6874 3350 
 
 To Connect with Web: 

Join Zoom Meeting-Day One 
https://wested.zoom.us/j/92303497250 

Join Zoom Meeting-Day Two 
https://wested.zoom.us/j/95204231860 
 

The best way to join a scheduled meeting is by clicking the link you were provided when you 
either scheduled it or were invited to it (from email, calendar invitation, etc.)  

The link will launch Zoom and place you in the conference.  This is true for all staff, as well as 
non-staff.  

If you do not have the app, your browser will download the installer and prompt you to run it.  
Once the installer has run, it will ask for your name and then take you into the meeting. 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.google.com/url?q=https*3A*2F*2Fwested.zoom.us*2Fj*2F92303497250&sa=D&source=calendar&usd=2&usg=AOvVaw2r1WJ4zgj0FcVXSU5-n9eZ__;JSUlJSU!!Jv0_iA8!6LDVTXhY5I5L7aO6jaugKETGkFcT1OJLSI2Dd1fNirhHWvLnWBjpdlr5aJXgaG_nzSw8$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.google.com/url?q=https*3A*2F*2Fwested.zoom.us*2Fj*2F95204231860&sa=D&source=calendar&usd=2&usg=AOvVaw29Ep7s0cQSsq7SwQXt410L__;JSUlJSU!!Jv0_iA8!--RZ8vfgWWB-qde1kgV0X7y_oRQ1gzs2QTlbSLJ5I6VIqTYnTP8e7MEz1xjyuGdxkYq_$


 

10 
 

    

 

 

Connect audio 

Choose the Join Audio Conference by Phone Call tab and dial in using the provided 
information. 

  

 
  



 

11 
 

Easy Tips for Successful Web Conferencing and Conference Calls* 
 
Participant Courtesies  
  
1. Use a landline if possible, for the least static interference. 
2. Avoid cellular and cordless phones.  The potential static and poor or broken connections reduce the 

sound quality for all conference call participants.  If you must use a cell phone, find a quiet location 
with excellent reception and limit moving around during the call. 

3. Know your phone features and how to use them.  Do not wait until the call to figure them out. 
4. Turn off call waiting.  It is very disruptive to the call.  Most call waiting features can be deactivated by 

pressing 70# or *70 before dialing the conference number.  (Check with your carrier.) 
5. Use the speaker feature on your phone only if the room is quiet and others in the room are 

participating on the call with you.  Speakerphones can add to the overall noise of the teleconference 
and create a hollow sound on the call. 

6. Choose a quiet location.  Avoid background noises such as a radio, TV, pets, or side conversations 
with others. 

7. Stay focused and participate on the call.  Avoid using this time to answer email, eat, clear off your 
desk, file papers, or talk to others. 

8. Be on time. 
9. Introduce yourself when you join the call.  If you join the call late, wait for a break in the conversation 

to announce that you have joined or until the moderator asks who joined. 
10. Introduce yourself each time you speak.  Not everyone will be familiar with your voice. 
11. Mute your phone (*6) if you are not participating at the time, need to talk to someone else, or need to 

leave the call for any reason.  Unmute your phone (#6) when you are able to return to the call. 
12. Never put the call on hold.  Either mute your phone (*6) and unmute your phone (#6) to rejoin, or hang 

up and call in again if you must leave the call. 
 

Facilitator/Chairperson Courtesies 
 
1. Be familiar with the audio controls. 

2. Start—and end—at the scheduled time. 
3. Have an agenda—preferably one that has been distributed prior to the conference. 
4. Identify yourself when you first connect to the conference call. 
5. Identify yourself each time you speak.  Others may not know your voice.  Speak clearly and at a 

moderate speed. 
6. Take roll call at the conference start so that everyone knows who is involved and listening. 
7. Review the rules of etiquette and ask that each participant identify him or herself before speaking. 
8. Allow only one individual to speak at any given time during the conference. 
9. As much as possible, when appropriate, address questions to individuals by name. 

10. Mute the microphone or speakerphone (*6) if you must speak to others in the room with you during the 
conference.  Unmute by pressing #6. 

11.  Address agenda items in their specified order. 
 

*Thank you to the Family Resource Center Network of California, the source for many of these tips, for 
sharing its teleconference etiquette. 

 

 



 

12 
 

July 15-16, 2021 

AGENDA  

 

  



 

13 
 

 

  

ICC Meeting Agenda (Day One) 
Date:  Thursday, July 15, 2021 

Time:  9:00 a.m.—1:00 p.m. 

Room:  Zoom 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 

 

RESPONSIBILITY 

9:00—9:15 Opening  

• Welcome  

• Introductions/Roll Call 

• Review Agenda 

• Announcements   

Marie Kanne Poulsen, ICC Chair 

 

9:15—10:15       Coming Home – Easing the Process from  

                           NICU to Early Start *Project Update 

Howard Doi, San Andreas 

Regional Center 

Michelle Oliver, Santa Clara 

County Office of Education 

Michelle Kjellesvig, Santa Clara 

County Office of Education 

10:15—10:30     BREAK 

10:30—11:00     Service Access and Equity Leinani Walter, DDS 

11:00—11:30     Remote Services Emergency Regulations DDS 

11:30—1:00      Committee Meetings, Breakout Sessions 
Communications and Outreach  

Improving State Systems  



 

14 
 

ICC Meeting Agenda (Day Two) 
Date:  Friday, July 16, 2021 

Time:  9:00 a.m.—1:00 p.m. 

Room:  Zoom 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 

 

 

9:00—9:15  Opening 

• Welcome  

• Introductions/Roll Call   

• Review Agenda 

• Approve April Meeting Minutes 

• Part C Literacy – Racism Creates Inequities 
in Maternal and Child Health, Even Before 
Birth 

Marie Kanne Poulsen, ICC Chair 

9:15—9:35    Committee Reports 
 

Improving State Systems 
Communications and Outreach 
Darby’s Legacy Ad Hoc 

 9:35—9:45     Present Early Start PSA    Omari Smith, DDS  

 9:45—10:25   Annual Performance Report Targets January Crane, DDS 

10:25—11:00  Family First Prevention Services Act CDSS 

11:00—11:15  BREAK 

11:15—11:30  Public Input  

 
 
11:30 —12:20   Department and Council Member Reports   

Representatives will provide a summary and 
allow for discussion, questions and answers 

 
 

Leanne Wheeler, CDE, Homeless Education 
Suzanne Sherinian, Dept. of Managed 
Health Care 
Stephanie Welch, CHHS Child Mental 
Health 
Michelle Dove, Head Start Agency 
Richard Olney, Dept. of Public Health 
Shanice Orum, Dept. of Social Services 
Lisa Witchey, Dept. of Social Services 
Maricris Acon, Dept. of Developmental 
Services  
Sarah Neville-Morgan, California Dept. of 
Education (CDE), Special Education  

12:20—12:50   Voices from the Field 

• Zero to Three                                                       

• Statewide Screening Task Force                        

• Infant Development Association of 

California     

• First 5 Association                                               

• The Arc    

• California Disability Community Action 

Network 

 

 

Christina Nigrelli  

Karen Moran Finello  

Fran Chasen 

 

Heather Little 

Teresa Anderson 

Marty Omoto 

 

12:50—1:00   Family Resource Center Network of   

                        California (FRCNCA)–Report 
Yvette Baptiste 



 

15 
 

April 15-16, 2021 

Past Meeting Minutes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

16 

 

Interagency Coordinating Council (ICC) on Early Intervention 
Thursday April 15, 2021 
Zoom Conference Call 

Time: 9:00 a.m. – 12:45 p.m. 
 
Opening 
Dr. Marie Kanne Poulsen, ICC Chair, opened the Zoom room at 9:04 am and welcomed 
everyone, and reminded everyone to practice self-care. 
 
Roll Call  
The roll call was conducted.  

 
Review Agenda 
No changes were made to the Agenda.  
 
Announcements 

• Dr. Poulsen introduced three new community representatives: Katie 
Hornberger, Maria Ruiz-Merroth, and Sheri Farinha.   

 
Impact of Poverty on Brain Development and the Effectiveness of Telehealth in 
Low-income Populations  
Sara Torten, OTD, OTR/L, Amigo Baby, Inc.  

• PowerPoint will be requested and provided to ICC by DDS. 

• Discussion and questions:  
o Question: Is Telehealth an approved (billable) activity ongoing?  Is 

Telehealth funded by EPSDT or through what funding source? 
▪ Answer: Pablo Velez commented that telehealth was 

approved only during the current state of emergency and 
that it would be beneficial if approval was permanent. 

o Pablo Velez shared that parents want to continue Telehealth visits 
because of the flexibility in scheduling it offers. 

o Maria Ruiz-Merroth shared that early intervention is key to 
successful long-term outcomes for children and families.  

o Sara Torten shared that she believes poverty should be a qualifier 
to receive early intervention. 

  
Committee Meetings 
The following ICC Committees met for breakout sessions: 

• Communications and Outreach 

• Improving State Systems 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

17 

 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Matt Chesnut 
Sharon DeRego 
Susan Ducore 
Douglas Erber* 
Sarah Neville-Morgan 
Richard Olney 
Shanice Orum 
Marie Kanne Poulsen 
Suzanne Sherinian 
Leanne Wheeler 
Lisa Witchey 
 
MEMBER EXCUSED 
Michelle Dove 
Alma Martinez* 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
Brigitte Ammons 
Brenda Baldeon 
Sally Grevemberg 
Stephanie Welch 
 
COMMUNITY MEMBERS PRESENT 
Teresa Anderson 
Tony Anderson 
Kathy Angkustsiri 
Yvette Baptiste 
Jazmine Blackman 
Elena Bramble 
Fran Chasen 
Sheri Farinha 
Samantha Hebermehl* 
Leah Howley 
Laurie Jordan* 
Linda Landry* 
Diana Maffei 
Gayatri Mahajan 
Robin Millar 
Karen Moran Finello 
Christina Nigrelli 
Maria Ruiz-Merroth 
Michelle Oliver 
Julie Rems-Smario 
Robert Rochin 



 

18 

 

Sheri Rosen 
Patricia Salcedo* 
Debbie Sarmento 
Tara Sisemore-Hester 
Pablo Velez 
Diane Williams 
 
COMMUNITY MEMBERS EXCUSED 
Florence Bracy 
Edyth Gallardo 
Heather Little 
Nancy Sager 
 
COMMUNITY MEMBERS ABSENT 
Brigitte Ammons 
Brenda Baldeon 
Maurine Ballard-Rosa 
Shan Chan 
Pam Chueh 
Wanda Davis 
Rachel Hagans 
Amy Hansen 
Lucero Irizarry 
Jordan Lindsey 
Kimberly McDaniel* 
Patricia Moore 
 
DDS 
Maricris Acon 
Reyna Ambriz 
January Crane 
Jessica Dailey-Keithline  
Desmond Fang 
Lauren Libero 
Mai Moua 
Marcy Okada 
Townley Saye 
Catherine Schulze 
Omari Smith 
Nathaniel Taleon 
Shay Willis 
Emily Woolford 
 
WESTED 
Angela McGuire 
Virginia Reynolds 



 

19 

 

Laura Romero 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Annie Baccay 
Karmina Barrales 
Jennifer Bloom 
Ashley Franklin 
Jillian Garcia 
Krista Gurko 
Katie Hornberger 
Sarah Leff 
Diane Lindsey 
Lauren Richards 
Rosie Rios 
Lupe Rojas-Sanchez 
Ron Torten 
 
*Parent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

20 

 

 
Interagency Coordinating Council (ICC) on Early Intervention 

Friday April 16, 2021 
Zoom Conference Call 

Time: 9:00 a.m. – 12:45 p.m. 
 
Opening 
 
Dr. Marie Kanne Poulsen, ICC Chair, opened the Zoom room at 9:05 a.m. 

• Welcomed everyone, thanked the team that supports the meeting, and reminded 
everyone to “care for yourself as you would others.”   

 
Roll Call  
 
The roll call was conducted.  

 
Review Agenda 
 
No changes were made to the Agenda.  
 
Approve January Meeting Minutes  
 
Matthew Chesnut made a motion to approve; Lisa Witchey seconded.  Minutes were 
approved with no changes.  
 
Part C Literacy – Solutions to Improving Black Maternal Health  
 
Dr. Poulsen presented an article outlining a study done by the Association of Black 
Cardiologists.  She highlighted the disparities that Black women face in healthcare, 
which includes an elevated risk of death during childbirth.  Racism and under 
representation of Black medical professionals is linked in the study to these negative 
outcomes.  Other factors include a lack of access to medical care in communities of 
color, general distrust of medical professionals born of historical mistreatment of the 
Black community and other social determinates like poverty.  
 
Committee Reports  
 
Improving State Systems Committee 
Matthew Chesnut reported : 

• Sharon DeRego provided an update to the Committee per their request on the 
use of teleintervention, utilization of the DDS BabyLine, Early Start referrals, and 
outreach efforts.  

• The Committee discussed current legislation, and committee members 
volunteered to track the legislation. 

• The Committee agreed to develop a working group to research teleintervention, 
identify best practices, and draft a report on the findings. 



 

21 

 

• Mr. Chesnut developed a Google doc that all the committee members can use to 
identify current issues in the state system and solutions for solving them.   

 
Communications and Outreach Committee 
Doug Erber reported: 

• The Committee received an update on the public service announcements (PSAs) 
that are in development:  

o A family-focused PSA will include a diverse group of families and their 
experience in early intervention.  

o An animated PSA will show a family entering and receiving services in the 
Early Start program.  

• The Department of Developmental Services (DDS) Early Start website is 
undergoing changes to become more user-friendly and to highlight the resources 
that families need.  

• The California Department of Education is developing a resource for families that 
are homeless, and the committee will determine how to disseminate the 
resource.  

• DDS was commended for creating resources in English, Spanish and other 
languages. 

• Going forward, Dr. Poulsen gave some direction to identify barriers to getting 
services, unmet needs, early identification for autism, outreach to Native 
Americans, and undocumented mothers and other vulnerable populations.  

• A survey was created to track how the PSAs are shared by the committee 
members.  

 
Adhoc Committee- Darby’s Legacy: Best Practices Serving Families with Infants 
and Toddlers who are Medically Fragile 
Linda Landry provided an update. 

• This group was established to be responsive to the issues raised in the ICC; and 
they held a meeting on April 11th.  

• The Committee is Co-Chaired by the ICC’s Linda Landry and Teresa Anderson 
and includes parents, clinicians, and representatives from family resource 
centers, the Department of Managed Health Care, the Department of Health 
Care Services, DDS, County Mental Health, and regional centers.  

• The Committee will create a ‘roadmap’ for families and those who support them.  
 
Presentation: Black Infant Health Program 
Niambi Lewis, California Department of Public Health (CDPH), explained the details of 

the Black Infant Health Program: 

• The Black Infant Health Program focuses on the health of African American 
mothers and their children with a goal of empowering African American women to 
make healthy choices for themselves and their families.  The program is open to 
all African American women over the age of 16.  

• The Perinatal Equity Initiative provides oversight of county level programs and 
guidance regarding evidence-based, evidence-informed, or reflective promising 
practices.  



 

22 

 

• The Community Birth Plan is a pilot program in Los Angeles County with the goal 
of creating a system of feedback from African American women to the hospitals 
that they gave birth in, to improve conditions by changing policies that resulted in 
negative outcomes.   

o Dr. Poulsen asked the group if they had had any training on implicit 

bias.  Several representatives confirmed that they had. Additionally, Dr. 

Brian Marks was identified as a resource for training. 

o Dr. Poulsen expressed that the ICC is eager to partner and collaborate 
with this program.  

 
Presentation: Black Maternal Health 
Felicia Ford and Francis Saunders, California Black Women’s Health Project, 
presented. 

• Felicia Ford shared a story about her experience as a Black mother of a child 
who went through the Early Start program.  She shared her personal struggles 
during birth/delivery, which were impacted by racial and economic bias inherent 
in the hospital practices.  She recounted that once it was discovered that her 
daughter would need additional supportive services, she was referred to her local 
regional center.  She thanked the regional center for empowering her and 
providing the services that she needed.  

• Francis Saunders spoke about her role, structuring outreach for the project. In 
that role, she: 

o strives to bring members of the Black community into the medical field;  
o works with Black mothers to give them the knowledge to advocate for 

themselves; 
o runs a program that helps Black men address the issue of violence in the 

community; 
o coordinates an outreach program for doulas and midwives to connect with 

those who could use their services.  
 
BREAK: 10:30 – 10:45  
 
Public Input 
 
No public input was provided. 
 
Voices from the Field  
 
Zero to Three, Christina Nigrelli: 

• State of Babies Yearbook is ready to launch April 22nd via a virtual event.  
First 5 and Zero to Three are launching a community of learning (COL) to support home 
visitors; the first session will focus on mindfulness. The applications to join the 
Mindfulness COL are due next week. Additional topics will be added as time goes on.  
 
Statewide Screening Collaborative Task Force, Karen Finello of WestEd: 

https://go.zerotothree.org/SOBY_2021_staffsig_rsvp
https://mailchi.mp/5192c359aebe/home-visiting-community-of-learning-opportunity


 

23 

 

• This group hosted the first in a webinar series that focuses on the voice of Native 
American communities called Family Voice.   

• The second webinar in the series is May 20; there are 74 registrants.  These 
webinars are not recorded to maintain the privacy of the guests and speakers.  

 
Infant Development Association of California, Fran Chasen and Douglas Erber: 

• Presented in Los Angeles County on the childcare planning committee for Early 
Start.  

• Created a PSA with Senator Mike McGuire for the Week of the Young Child.  

• Announced an upcoming webinar about Early Start in a post COVID-19 world.  
 
First 5 Association, Alexandra Parma:  

• Hosting their third annual Día de Los Libros event on April 30th.  

• Working with the First 5 centers on a program that will describe how medical and 
managed care plans interact with Early Start.  

• Partnered with United Way of California for an outreach program for the 
California Earned Income Tax Credit and the Young Child Tax Credit.  

• Shared their presentation notes. 
 
Family Resource Centers Network of California (FRCNA), Yvette Baptiste:  

• Reported on trainings provided to Early Start staff. 

• Karen Ortega has helped the FRCs pivot to provide more training to families 
about how to practice self-care.  

• During the monthly meeting of the FRC Directors there was a focus on the 
Centers providing services related to the pandemic, including:  

o Information and outreach about vaccinations. 
o Walk-up clinics.  
o Handing out PPE (Personal Protective Equipment). 
o Assistance in identifying and addressing the needs of communities of 

color. 
o Information for families on vaccination locations and assistance with 

scheduling. 

• Legislation: 
o DDS Community Navigator program: This program was included in the 

proposed budget for the 21-22 year and could be approved along with the 
final budget.  

o AB 126: This bill allocates $20 million received through federal funding to 
support expansion of the Family Empowerment Centers.  This has not 
been passed; encouraged attendees to contact legislators to support this 
bill.  

• Received an Access and Equity Grant from DDS to support Black and Latino 
children as they transition from Early Start to the education system.  With the 
additional resources, the program can be expanded in 8 to 10 areas across the 
State.  

• Shared a video produced with CAPTAIN (California Autism Professional Training 
and Information Network) and detailing services.  

https://www.cascreenbto5.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/Tribal-Access-Webinar_IHS-slides-Ducore-1_27_2021Final.pdf
https://www.cascreenbto5.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/Screening-Webinar-May-2021-Family-Voices-Flyer-FNL.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/s/ijlrz1dk9xtyasd/Senator%20Mike%20McGuire%20The%20Week%20of%20the%20Young%20Child.mp4?dl=0
https://app.box.com/s/leqkpoi47yd5txpbpvx9uzhu6gwo064t
https://youtu.be/4TLQmbqzFvs
http://www.captain.ca.gov/


 

24 

 

 
Council Member Reports  
 
Michelle Dove, Head Start Agency 

• Head Start was granted additional funding for COVID-19 to prepare and prevent 
spread. These funds are flexible and can be used to help the community. 

 
Richard Olney, CDPH, Center for Family Health 

• Most of the agency’s focus is on the ongoing vaccination effort. 

• Diane Lindsey will lead the organization. 
 
Shanice Orum, Department of Social Services (CDSS) 

• CDSS hosted a panel with representatives from the local regional center on Early 
Start programs. 

• The guidelines for childcare providers/centers were updated based on the latest 
information from the Centers for Disease Control.  

• On-site childcare inspections were halted until it has been determined to be safe 
to send representatives out again.  

 
Lisa Witchey, CDSS 

• CDSS is going through reorganization, and they have moved to a new branch. 
Their focus on early childhood has not changed.  

• The birth through 6 toolkit is in the process of being updated with feedback from 
the community. It will focus on how every level of CDSS can support children and 
families that experience trauma.  

 
Maricris Acon, DDS 

• We continue to provide Early Start webinars, on teleintervention and on mental 
health and wellness.  

• Early Start cases from January to March have increased 12% with 660 additional 
referrals. 

• Some regional centers have seen a decrease in cases, and they are stepping up 
their efforts to identify children who would benefit from services.  

• DDS and the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) are partnering to work 
with healthcare providers to educate them on their obligation to refer children and 
families to the Early Start program and the FRCs.  

• On April 2nd DDS extended the directive that allows children to remain in the 
Early Start program until transitional services can return.  

• DDS is exploring options about how they can extend teleintervention services  
once the pandemic is over.  

o Ms. Acon advised that letters from families on their experiences with 
telepractice in Early Start be sent to Early Start at DDS.  

 
Sara Neville-Morgan, California Department of Education (CDE), Special Education  

• The Governor’s Budget includes $300 million for special education.   



 

25 

 

• The American Rescue Plan specifies funding for the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act. The projection for California is $206 million for Part B and $24 
million for Part C.  

• The Inclusive Early Education plan is expanding.   

• SB 75: Part C to Part B Transition advisory group met and received feedback on 
the draft report. The workgroups are done, and they are finalizing the report, to 
be submitted to the Legislature by October 1st.  

• CDE is hosting an Early Childhood webinar series on creating brave spaces in 
early childhood: 

o First webinar on strategies to interrupt racism, bias and hate, is scheduled 
for April 26, 6 - 8 p.m.  

o Second webinar, on how preschool suspension and expulsions are hurting 
children long-term, will be May 10th.    

• Questions from members:  
o What is being done to train professionals on the issues that are causing 

removal or expulsion?  
▪ There was a bill that was passed that prevents expulsions; 

programs must create a plan with parents to help the 
children.  California Inclusion and Behavior Consultation (CIBC) at 
WestEd is available to support these programs/professionals.  

o Will the webinars be recorded?   
▪ Yes. Recordings will also be posted. 

o Is there any language in the bills that is specific to Early Start? 
▪ There is not specific language, but if members have language to 

suggest, they may write directly to the author of a bill.  

• Grants for homeless education will be awarded soon, as the application process 
has finished.  

 
Suzanne Sherinian, DMHC 

• Shared that DMHC was able to stop a family from being charged $16,000 for a 
helicopter ride their child had to take when being transferred from one hospital to 
another.  

• Are reviewing all proposed federal healthcare legislation.  
 
Closing comments:   

• Dr. Poulsen would like everyone to help develop the ICC Agenda. She invited 
members to contact her with suggestions. She also reminded members to 
complete the survey from the Communications Committee as requested. 
 

Meeting adjourned at 12:45 p.m. 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Matt Chesnut 
Sharon DeRego 
Michelle Dove 

https://surveys2.cde.ca.gov/go/cbs-webinar-registration.asp


 

26 

 

Susan Ducore 
Douglas Erber* 
Sarah Neville-Morgan 
Richard Olney 
Shanice Orum 
Marie Kanne Poulsen 
Suzanne Sherinian 
Leanne Wheeler 
Lisa Witchey 
 
MEMBER EXCUSED 
Alma Martinez* 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
Brigitte Ammons 
Brenda Baldeon 
Sally Grevemberg 
Stephanie Welch 
 
COMMUNITY MEMBERS PRESENT 
Teresa Anderson 
Tony Anderson 
Kathy Angkustsiri 
Yvette Baptiste 
Jazmine Blackman 
Elena Bramble 
Fran Chasen 
Sheri Farinha 
Samantha Hebermehl* 
Leah Howley 
Laurie Jordan* 
Linda Landry* 
Diana Maffei 
Gayatri Mahajan 
Robin Millar 
Karen Moran Finello 
Christina Nigrelli 
Maria Ruiz-Merroth 
Michelle Oliver 
Nancy Sager 
Julie Rems-Smario 
Robert Rochin 
Sheri Rosen 
Patricia Salcedo* 
Tara Sisemore-Hester 
Pablo Velez 



 

27 

 

Diane Williams 
 
COMMUNITY MEMBERS EXCUSED 
Florence Bracy 
Debbie Sarmento 
 
COMMUNITY MEMBERS ABSENT 
Brigitte Ammons 
Brenda Baldeon 
Maurine Ballard-Rosa 
Shan Chan 
Pam Chueh 
Wanda Davis 
Rachel Hagans 
Amy Hansen 
Lucero Irizarry 
Jordan Lindsey 
Kimberly McDaniel* 
Patricia Moore 
 
DDS 
Maricris Acon 
Reyna Ambriz 
January Crane 
Jessica Dailey-Keithline  
Desmond Fang 
Mai Moua 
Marcy Okada 
Townley Saye 
Catherine Schulze 
Omari Smith 
Nathaniel Taleon 
Shay Willis 
Emily Woolford 
 
WESTED 
Angela McGuire 
Virginia Reynolds 
Laura Romero 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Annie Baccay 
Karmina Barrales 
Jennifer Bloom 
Gingi Cleopatri Allen 
Ashley Franklin 



 

28 

 

Kim Hough 
Jillian Garcia 
Krista Gurko 
Katie Hornberger 
Beverly Hutchinson 
Sarah Leff 
Niambi Lewis 
Diane Lindsey 
Kay Medina 
Hazel Owens 
Rosie Rios 
Lupe Rojas-Sanchez 
Frances Saunders 
Alyssa Suzuki 
Julie Wong 
 
*Parent 
 
 
 


	Table of Contents
	Public Meeting Notice
	Agenda
	Minutes

